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U N I T E D  S T A T E S  D I S T R I C T  C O U R T  
F O R  T H E  E A S T E R N  D I S T R I C T  O F  T E X A S  

S H E R M A N  D I V I S I O N  
 

  
Crystal Bolduc, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

Amazon.com Inc., 

Defendant. 

 
 
 

 
Case No. 4:22-cv-615 

 
 

 
CLASS-ACTION COMPLAINT 

Amazon.com enters into contracts with “delivery service partners” to bring pack-

ages to its patrons. It also engages it patently unlawful racial discrimination by provid-

ing a $10,000 bonus to “Black, Latinx, and Native American entrepreneurs” who act 

as its delivery service partners, while withholding this stipend from Asian-Americans 

and whites who deliver Amazon packages. Plaintiff Crystal Bolduc brings suit to en-

join Amazon.com from continuing these racially discriminatory practices, and to re-

cover classwide damages on behalf of everyone who has suffered unlawful racial dis-

crimination on account of this program. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. The Court has subject-matter jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and 28 

U.S.C. § 1343. 

2. Venue is proper because a substantial part of the events giving rise to the 

claims occurred in this judicial district. See 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2). 

PARTIES 

3. Plaintiff Crystal Bolduc is a citizen of Texas who resides in Denton County. 
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4. Defendant Amazon.com Inc. is a corporation organized under the laws of 

Delaware. It may be served at 410 Terry Avenue North, Seattle, Washington 98109. 

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

5. Amazon.com Inc. (Amazon) delivers packages to its patrons by entering into 

contracts with “delivery service partners.”  

6. Amazon allows individuals who wish to become delivery service partners to 

apply through its website. See https://logistics.amazon.com (last visited on July 20, 

2022). A copy of this webpage is attached to the complaint as Exhibit 1. 

7. Amazon discriminates against whites and Asian-Americans, and in favor of 

black, Latino, and Native Americans, who wish to become delivery service partners. 

On its website, under the heading “Commitment to Diversity,” Amazon says:  

We’re proud to announce a Diversity Grant to help reduce the barriers 
to entry for Black, Latinx, and Native American entrepreneurs—a $1 
million commitment toward funding startup costs, offering $10,000 
for each qualified candidate to build their own businesses in the U.S. 
With the launch of this grant program, we’re investing in building a 
future for diverse business owners to serve their communities. If inter-
ested, please complete the diversity questions in the Financial Details 
section of the Application. 

Exhibit 1.  

8. This means that businesses owned by blacks, Latinos, or Native Americans 

receive a $10,000 stipend from Amazon to become delivery service partners, while 

whites and Asian-Americans who wish to become delivery service partners receive no 

such stipend and must foot the entire bill for their startup costs.  

9. This is not the only instance of unlawful racial discrimination at Amazon. 

Amazon has also been operating a “Black Business Accelerator” program since June 

of 2021. 

10. Amazon claims that this program is “dedicated to helping build sustainable 

diversity and provide growth opportunities for Black-owned businesses.” Exhibit 2.  
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11. Amazon uses this program to engage in unlawful racial discrimination against 

non-black owned business and in favor of black-owned businesses that sell products 

through Amazon. 

12. For example, Amazon uses this program to give black-owned businesses a 

“$500 credit to assist with start-up and operational costs for eligible newly-launched 

sellers.” Exhibit 2. Non-black-owned businesses are ineligible for this credit. 

13. Amazon also uses this program to give black-owned businesses “[a]dvertis-

ing credits to increase exposure” for their businesses. Exhibit 2. Non-black-owned 

businesses are ineligible for these advertising credits.  

14. Amazon uses this program to give black-owned businesses “FREE imaging 

services for up to 50 products to help showcase [their] products.” Exhibit 2. Non-

black-owned businesses are ineligible for these free imaging services. 

15. And Amazon uses this program to provide black-owned businesses with 

“cash grant opportunities for select sellers.” Exhibit 2. Non-black-owned businesses 

are ineligible for these cash grant opportunities. 

16. Amazon also uses this program to provide “business education, coaching, 

and mentorship,” as well as “marketing and promotional support,” to black-owned 

businesses that it refuses to provide non-black-owned businesses. 

17. Details of this racially discriminatory program can be found on Amazon’s 

website at: https://sell.amazon.com/programs/black-business-accelerator (last 

visited July 20, 2022).  

FACTS RELATED TO STANDING 

18. Plaintiff Crystal Bolduc wishes to become an Amazon delivery service part-

ner, and she is “able and ready to apply.” See Carney v. Adams, 141 S. Ct. 493, 499–

500 (2020); Gratz v. Bollinger, 539 U.S. 244, 261 (2003).  
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19. Ms. Bolduc, however, is white, and she is therefore ineligible for the $10,000 

stipend that Amazon awards to black, Latino, and Native Americans to offset their 

startup costs.  

20. Ms. Bolduc is suffering injury in fact because she cannot apply to become an 

Amazon delivery service partner without subjecting herself to racial discrimination.  

21. Ms. Bolduc will not apply to become an Amazon delivery service partner 

until Amazon eliminates this racially discriminatory policy, either by extending its 

$10,000 benefit to whites and Asians or curtailing or eliminating the benefit entirely. 

22. Ms. Bolduc’s injuries are traceable to Amazon and its racially discriminatory 

policies, and they will be redressed by the damages and prospective relief sought in 

this lawsuit.  

23. Ms. Bolduc seeks to represent a class of all past and future applicants to Am-

azon’s “delivery service partners” program who have been subjected to racial discrim-

ination. 

CAUSE OF ACTION 

24. 42 U.S.C. § 1981 prohibits Amazon from engaging in racial discrimination 

in the making and enforcement of contracts.  

25. Amazon is violating 42 U.S.C. § 1981 by awarding $10,000 to its black, 

Latino, and Native American contractors, while withholding this benefit from its 

white and Asian contractors.  

26. 42 U.S.C. § 1981 provides Ms. Bolduc with a private right of action to sue 

for both damages and prospective relief. See Johnson v. Railway Express Agency, Inc., 

421 U.S. 454, 459–60 (1975). 

DEMAND FOR RELIEF 

27. Ms. Bolduc respectfully requests that the court: 
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a. certify the class described in paragraph 23;  
 

b. declare that Amazon is violating 42 U.S.C. § 1981 by excluding whites 
and Asian-Americans from the $10,000 stipend that it provides to the 
black, Latino, and Native American contractors in its delivery-service-
partners program; 

 
c. enjoin Amazon from discriminating against or giving preferential treat-

ment to any person or entity on account of race; 
 

d. award costs and attorneys’ fees; 
 

e. award all other relief that the Court deems just, proper, or equitable. 
 

 
 
 
Adam K. Mortara* 
Illinois Bar No. 6282005 
Lawfair LLC 
125 South Wacker Drive, Suite 300 
Chicago, Illinois 60606 
(773) 750-7154 
adam@mortaralaw.com  
 
Gene P. Hamilton* 
Virginia Bar No. 80434 
Vice-President and General Counsel 
America First Legal Foundation 
300 Independence Avenue SE 
Washington, DC 20003 
(202) 964-3721 
gene.hamilton@aflegal.org 
 
* pro hac vice application pending 
 
Dated: July 20, 2022 

Respectfully submitted. 
 
 /s/ Jonathan F. Mitchell  
Jonathan F. Mitchell 
Lead Attorney 
Texas Bar No. 24075463 
Mitchell Law PLLC 
111 Congress Avenue, Suite 400 
Austin, Texas 78701 

(phone) 3940-(512) 686  
)3941 (fax-(512) 686  

jonathan@mitchell.law 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Counsel for Plaintiff 
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Own your success
If you love building and leading teams, start your own
business as an Amazon Delivery Service Partner, delivering
smiles to customers across your community. Apply today or
sign up to learn more.

Apply Now

Learn More

You bring leadership, 
we'll bring the rest

We are looking for hands-on leaders who are passionate
about hiring and coaching great teams. With low startup
costs, built-in demand, and access to Amazon's technology
and logistics experience, this is an opportunity to build and
grow a successful package delivery business. Join a community
of Amazon Delivery Service Partners in one of the fastest-growing
industries in the world.

The Amazon advantage

Low startup costs
Start your business with as little as $10,000.

Logistics experience not required
Use our technology, processes, and more than 20 years of logistics
experience to set up and run your delivery business.

Focus on people, not sales
Amazon’s packages keep your business growing, so you can focus on
building a great team and delivering without worrying about driving
sales.

Support, when you need it
Amazon’s experience is behind you every step of the way, from

HOME OPPORTUNITY GETTING STARTED SUCCESS STORIES FAQ WEBINARS DOWNLOAD BROCHURE sign out Start Now
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Amazon’s experience is behind you every step of the way, from
hands-on training to on-demand support to ensure your operation
runs smoothly.

Deliver smiles
Delight thousands of customers every day as an essential part of
Amazon, the most customer-centric company on Earth.

Success stories

I motivate through leading by example. I’m
always in a positive mood and smile a lot. I
show my team my passion for my company. I
make each employee feel extremely valued for
all of their hard work. I emphasize the
importance of our performance together and
the fact that we represent the biggest brand in
the world. Each day it’s all about our image and
delivery success. I make sure everyone is in
uniforms and delivering smiles daily. I stress
punctuality and accurate delivery performance.
And I try to encourage them to have fun!

Simona
Miami, FL 
Team size: 60

MORE SUCCESS STORIES

Commitment to Diversity
We're proud to announce a Diversity Grant to help reduce
the barriers to entry for Black, Latinx, and Native
American entrepreneurs—a $1 million commitment
toward funding startup costs, offering $10,000 for each
qualified candidate to build their own businesses in the
U.S. With the launch of this grant program, we’re
investing in building a future for diverse business owners
to serve their communities. If interested, please complete
the diversity questions in the Financial Details section of
the Application.

APPLY NOW
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Interested in becoming a Delivery Associate for
a local Amazon DSP?

Amazon DSPs are hiring Delivery Associates (DAs) to deliver smiles to
customers every day. In a Delivery Associate role, you’ll earn
competitive compensation, have access to benefits offered by
Amazon DSPs, have opportunities for professional growth, and so
much more, all while being a delivery hero in your community.

FIND DELIVERY JOBS

Your success story starts here.

Apply Now FOR DSP

Still have questions ? Check out our FAQs.

© 2021, Amazon.com, Inc. or its affiliates | Site terms | Privacy notice
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Financial assistance
Access services and grants to help jump-start
business growth and customer acquisition.
Opportunities include:

Programs

Black
Business
Accelerator
Amazon’s Black Business Accelerator is dedicated to
helping build sustainable diversity and provide
growth opportunities for Black-owned businesses.
Grow your business with access to financial support,
strategic business guidance and mentorship, and
marketing and promotional support.

 

Get started

 

 

 

Watch video
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$500 credit to assist with start-up and operational costs
for eligible newly-launched sellers.

Advertising credits to increase exposure for your
business.

FREE imaging services for up to 50 products to help
showcase your products.

Cash grant opportunities for select sellers, offered in
partnership with Hello Alice, an organization dedicated to
helping entrepreneurs launch and grow their businesses.
Sign up for alerts.

Business education,
coaching &
mentorship
Connect with a dedicated network of business
mentors and coaches, including Amazon experts and
small business thought leaders, to continue to
accelerate your business growth.

Access a minimum of one year of strategic advisory
services to get the coaching, training, and insights you
need to take your business to the next level.

Access free education resources to help you sell in
Amazon’s store.

Opportunities to join BBA Connect, a 12-month
program providing guidance, education, and community
needed to help you thrive as entrepreneurs and business
leaders. Learn more.
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Marketing &
promotional support
Access new opportunities to be featured in the Black-
owned business storefronts for Amazon retail
customers and Amazon Business customers and
promotions featuring Black-owned businesses that
will help customers find products from your business
throughout the shopping experience.

Empowering Black-owned
businesses

Since enrolling in
Black Business
Accelerator, my
account manager has
been a coach,
cheerleader, and

Black Business
Accelerator has been
valuable in
identifying
opportunities to
increase revenue and

Available
benefits
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Frequently Asked Questions
Get answers to the frequently asked questions about Amazon’s Black Business Accelerator

Karen Blackwell
Founder and CEO, Sage & Alms:
socially conscious cloths and
chocolates

Retail customer storefront

Rodney Marshall
President & CEO, Aldevra:
commercial food service and
medical equipment

Amazon Business storefront

strategist. It honestly
doesn’t get any better
than that.

save money. We’ve
been able to hire
another employee.

Our partners
We’re proud to partner with organizations who will lead community engagement for
Amazon’s Black Business Accelerator and help provide participants with mentorship, business
development, training and educational resources to empower their success. Our partners will
also continue to advise us as we enhance the Black Business Accelerator based on their deep
experience in supporting Black businesses, and help us as we create similar programs for
other underrepresented populations of business owners in the future.

U.S. Department of Commerce Minority Business
Development Agency

U.S. Black Chambers,
Inc.

Start Grow Learn Pricing Blog Sign up
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Is participation in Amazon’s Black Business Accelerator free?

Yes, Amazon’s Black Business Accelerator is a free program for Black-owned U.S. businesses selling in
Amazon’s store.

Who can sign up for Amazon’s Black Business Accelerator?

All sellers in the U.S. who a) have an Amazon Professional Sellers account, b) have a physical product(s)
ready to promote and sell, and c) have uploaded a valid minority-owned business registration or
certification to their account in Seller Central from the National Minority Supplier Development Council,
U.S. System for Award Management, U.S. Small Business Administration, or SupplierGATEWAY,
demonstrating the business is Black-owned based on the criteria of the certifying body, can sign up for
Amazon’s Black Business Accelerator.

What if I don’t have a minority-owned business certification that demonstrates my business is Black-
owned?

You can register your business as minority-owned on the U.S. System for Award Management or apply
for certification through the National Minority Supplier Development Council, U.S. Small Business
Administration, or SupplierGATEWAY, and demonstrate your business is Black-owned. Amazon is not a
certifying body. Sellers are expected to determine their own eligibility requirements for a certification
and how to obtain the appropriate supporting documentation depending on the certification.

How do you define a Black-owned business?

We follow the definitions provided by the applicable certifying agency, including the National Minority
Supplier Development Council, U.S. System for Award Management, U.S. Small Business Administration,
and SupplierGATEWAY. Generally, this means that the business must be at least 51% Black-owned,
managed, and controlled.

Where is this program available?

Amazon’s Black Business Accelerator is currently available in the U.S.

When was the program announced?

Amazon’s Black Business Accelerator was announced in June 2021.

How can I reach business customers through the program?

You can reach millions of business customers in addition to consumers on Amazon Business, Amazon’s
B2B online store. Once you become an Amazon Professional Seller as part of the program, you can join

Overall program
Case 4:22-cv-00615   Document 1-2   Filed 07/20/22   Page 5 of 8 PageID #:  13

https://nmsdc.org/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://www.sam.gov/SAM/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://www.sba.gov/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://www.suppliergateway.com/enhanced-digital-certification/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://www.sam.gov/SAM/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://nmsdc.org/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://www.sba.gov/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://www.suppliergateway.com/enhanced-digital-certification/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://nmsdc.org/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://www.sam.gov/SAM/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://www.sba.gov/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://www.suppliergateway.com/enhanced-digital-certification/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://www.amazon.com/bba?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle
https://business.amazon.com/?initialSessionID=137-0960214-1095713&ld=NSGoogle&ldStackingCodes=NSGoogle


B2B online store. Once you become an Amazon Professional Seller as part of the program, you can join
the Amazon Business Seller program at no additional cost. All Black-owned business participants will be
able to benefit from our customer-facing discoverability features, Diversity Certifications Policy
experience, and other program benefits.

My product is not ready to promote and sell. When can I sign up for Amazon’s Black Business Accelerator?

There is no deadline to enroll in Amazon’s Black Business Accelerator. Once you have your product
developed and ready to promote and sell on Amazon, then you can enroll in the Black Business
Accelerator to help launch your selling business. In the meantime, free training and educational
resources on how to start and build a successful business selling online are available through Amazon
Small Business Academy, Amazon Seller University, and the Minority Business and Technology Initiative.

What financial assistance benefits are available?

Free strategic advisory services for up to one year. You can access these services with the help of
an account manager after enrollment.

A $500 credit for New Amazon Professional Sellers (new sellers are those who became an Amazon
Professional Seller in the 12 months preceding enrollment in the Black Business Accelerator).

Up to $400 in advertising credits. If you create or maintain an active campaign (Sponsored
Products, Sponsored Display, or Sponsored Brands) through your seller account, within 1 year from
enrollment in the Black Business Accelerator, Amazon Advertising will automatically apply
promotional clicks of $100 to your account within two weeks of taking such action. You will obtain
another $100 in promotional clicks every 3 months if you have an active campaign, up to $400 or
1 year in the Black Business Accelerator, whichever comes sooner. Any unused promotional clicks
will expire after 1 year from the date the promotional clicks are applied. You will be charged for
any clicks received before the promotional clicks are applied. The Amazon Advertising Agreement
applies.

Complimentary imaging services for up to 50 products to help elevate your products and ensure a
professional presentation to customers. To use the imaging services, you are required to ship a
sample of your products to the Amazon Imaging studio. Once product images are completed, you
will be provided with a URL to access the images. Once you have the images, you can upload them
to the corresponding detail pages. The Amazon Imaging Services Terms and Conditions apply.

Cash grant opportunities for select sellers, offered in partnership with Hello Alice, an organization
dedicated to helping entrepreneurs launch and grow their businesses.

Sign up for alerts

Amazon Professional Sellers may also be eligible for the Fulfillment by Amazon (FBA) New
Selection program. Speak to your Account Manager about how to onboard. These FBA benefits are
not unique to the Black Business Accelerator.

What business education and mentorship resources are available to help me sell on Amazon?

Benefits
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All Black Business Accelerator participants will be offered a grant in the form of a year of strategic
advisory services. Account managers will offer coaching and mentorship to assist with your business
growth.

BBA Connect is join BBA Connect, a 12-month program providing guidance, education, and community
needed to help you thrive as entrepreneurs and business leaders. Sign up to receive notification about
when applications open.

Free training and educational resources on how to start and build a successful business selling online
are available through Amazon Small Business Academy, Amazon Seller University, and the Minority
Business and Technology Initiative.

How can I get my business and products featured in Amazon’s store?

All Black Business Accelerator participants will be considered for opportunities to be featured within
storefronts for Amazon retail customers and Amazon Business customers. Participants will also be
identified as minority-owned businesses across various discoverability features that highlight products
from minority-owned businesses in Amazon’s store.

Who can join BBA Connect?

BBA Connect is a benefit for existing Amazon Sellers participating in Amazon’s Black Business
Accelerator. To be eligible, you must meet the following criteria: (i) be signed up to sell in Amazon’s
store with an active Professional Seller Account opened on or before November 1, 2021 (ii) are at least
51% black-owned; (iii) hold a valid minority-owned business credential demonstrating the business is
Black-owned, based on the criteria of the certifying body from one of the following organizations:
National Minority Supplier Development Council, Small Business Administration’s 8(a) Business
Development Program, System for Awards Management (SAM), or Supplier GATEWAY Enhanced Digital
Certification (EDC); (iv) have uploaded such credentials to Amazon Seller Central with a registered
Amazon Professional Seller account, and (v) have a product to promote and sell on Amazon within the
next six months.

How do I apply to join BBA Connect?

Applications are now closed.

Join
Amazon’s
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